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1            (Start time:  10:00 a.m.)

2                  P R O C E E D I N G S

3            VICE CHAIRMAN FORESMAN:  I will call the

4 public hearing to order.

5            I hereby call the public hearing to order.  A

6 public hearing is not typically a forum for debate of

7 the issues.  Rather the purpose of this hearing is to

8 provide the Department of Natural Resources and the

9 public an opportunity to present testimony on proposed

10 amendments and rescissions to 10 CSR 25 and 10 CSR 26.

11            At the request of the Commission the

12 Department will first present testimony on proposed

13 rescissions.  Following their testimony the public will

14 be given the opportunity to comment on the proposed

15 rulemaking.  A sign-up sheet is provided at the back of

16 the room for anyone in attendance at this hearing, in

17 addition to comment forms for those who wish to make any

18 oral comments.

19            Please fill out a comment form if you wish to

20 be heard.  This will aid us in recognizing speakers and

21 calling them to testify.

22            Additionally we ask anyone who approaches the

23 Commission to testify to please state their name and

24 affiliation, if any, for the record, to provide a

25 business card if available to the court reporter and to
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1 the Commission Secretary.

2            Written comments will also be accepted at

3 this public hearing.  Please provide them to the

4 Hazardous Waste Programs Director John Jurgensmeyer.

5 Following the conclusion of the hearing comments may be

6 submitted by mail to the Director of the Hazardous Waste

7 Program, P. O. Box 176, Jefferson City, Missouri 65102.

8            Comments submitted by mail must be

9 post-marked on or before the end of the public comment

10 period on September 20th, 2018.

11            E-mail comments shall be sent to Tim Eiken at

12 dnr.mo.gov.  They may also be received no later than

13 September 20th, 2018.

14            We'll start with the DNR, Tim.

15            (Speaker sworn.)

16            MR. EIKEN:  Good morning, Commissioners.

17            For the record my name is Tim Eiken.  I'm the

18 Rule Coordinator for the Hazardous Waste Program.  I'm

19 here to present the Department's testimony on these

20 proposed amendments and rescissions to the Code of State

21 Regulations.  We have a total of 19 rules, 17 amendments

22 and 2 rescissions to give you testimony on today.

23            I'm going to be doing the testimony on

24 hazardous waste rules, and then following my testimony

25 we'll also have some testimony from Scott Huckstep with
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1 our Brownfields/Involuntary Cleanup Program, and

2 testimony on one additional rule from our tanks section

3 staff on another proposed amendment to the tanks rules.

4            So just a brief summary of what I'm going to

5 talk about in my testimony, some background information

6 and give you the background on why we're proposing these

7 changes, give you some additional details on the

8 specific changes that we are proposing and just kind of

9 a summary over all of how many rules that we have

10 scheduled for this hearing.

11            As I mentioned previously, we do have

12 19 proposed rules.  They were published -- 18 of them in

13 the July 16th Missouri Register and one in the

14 August 1st Missouri Register.  The public hearing is

15 today, and the public comment period closes seven days

16 from today, September 20th.

17            The background for why we're proposing these

18 changes is three words, Red Tape Reduction.  This is

19 part of the Governor's proposal to reduce the amount of

20 regulatory red tape in Missouri.

21            As part of that process each division, each

22 program went through the rules in their program that

23 relate to their program to try to find outdated,

24 unnecessary requirements, outdated, unnecessary

25 restrictive words and to move forward with amendments or
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1 rescissions to get rid of those unnecessary, outdated

2 rules and requirements.

3            So the idea is let's reduce the regulatory

4 burden where we can without sacrificing environment

5 protection.  So basically we're focused on unnecessary

6 restrictive words and unnecessary requirements in the

7 rules.

8            For all rules the most significant changes

9 that we have found relate to a handful of rules.  A lot

10 of the additional requirements in our Missouri rules

11 have already been removed through the no stricter than

12 process.  So when we went through this we didn't have as

13 many Missouri rules to look at as we previously did, but

14 the rules that we really focused on as far as the more

15 significant changes with these amendments are listed

16 here.

17            The first rule deals with identification of

18 hazardous waste.  This is basically the gateway rule

19 that spells out when a certain material is a hazardous

20 waste and when it isn't.

21            Hazardous waste generators would be the next

22 rule.  As its names implies, these are the requirements

23 for hazardous waste generators, labeling their hazardous

24 waste, storage of the hazardous waste.

25            Resource recovery, the next one, this deals
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1 with companies or facilities that recycle their

2 hazardous waste instead of disposing of it.  So we are

3 proposing to transition that program in Missouri from

4 our current resource recovery rule to a newly adopted

5 Federal rule.

6            Finally another rule proposed for rescission

7 deals with our State registry of abandoned or

8 uncontrolled hazardous waste disposal sites.  We'll

9 still have a statute that does the registry and that

10 requires the annual report that the Commission sees

11 every year, but as far as the rule, most of what is in

12 the rule just duplicates what's in the statute.

13            So a summary.  What are some of the

14 significant changes in these proposed amendments?

15            First of all, I kind of already touched on it

16 already, but we are proposing to rescind our State rule

17 relating to resource recovery, and to replace that we

18 are proposing to adopt a series of rules that are kind

19 of collectively called the Federal Definition of Solid

20 Waste Rule.

21            The original rule came out in 2008, and it

22 was amended in 2015 and 2018.  We haven't previously

23 adopted any of those rules, but they do much the same

24 thing as our current resource recovery rule does.

25            So our proposal basically is to rescind
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1 resource recovery and replace it with the Federal rule

2 and the current facilities -- the facilities that are

3 currently operating under our resource recovery program

4 will be able to transition and operate under these newly

5 adopted rules.

6            Rescission of the State registry rule.  And

7 with regards to generators we are proposing to eliminate

8 some Missouri specific options from our regulations and

9 go with the Federal rule and the Federal language on

10 these requirements.

11            As I mentioned, the first group of amendments

12 was published -- most of the amendments were published

13 July 16th in the Missouri Register.  That opened the

14 public comment period on these rules, and that comment

15 period ends one week from today, September 20th.

16            We do have a total of 17 proposed amendments

17 and two proposed rescissions.

18            This next slide is just a list of the

19 amendments that we're proposing.  Most of these are

20 hazardous waste rules, but we do have one rule related

21 to the voluntary cleanup program and one rule related to

22 underground storage tanks also included in this mix.

23            And the Federal Definition of Solid Waste

24 Rule, what we're proposing there, to adopt the original

25 rule in 2008, including the amendments that were
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1 published in 2015 and May of this year.

2            So if we proceed and adopt what we propose,

3 our rules on this would be equivalent to the current

4 Federal rules on this topic.

5            The two proposed rescissions, hazardous waste

6 resource recovery and the abandoned and uncontrolled

7 hazardous waste disposal sites.

8            The first specific rule, 10 CSR 25-2.010.

9 The page number is in parentheses if you want to refer

10 to the printed rule text in your Commission packets.

11            Basically there is not a lot to this rule

12 other than just some minor changes to eliminate

13 unnecessary rule language.

14            The next rule, appeals.  This basically

15 almost entirely duplicates the statutory language on

16 appealing Department decisions to the Administrative

17 Hearing Commission and then taking that decision of the

18 Administrative Hearing Commission back to the Commission

19 for a final decision.

20            So there really isn't anything in the rule

21 that is not already in the statute.  It's duplicative

22 and actually outdated at this point.  Since we

23 originally adopted the rule the statute has changed.  So

24 this will eliminate future conflicts and eliminate

25 duplicative rule language in the appeal rules.
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1            So definitions.  Basically this is the rule

2 that defines the terms that we use elsewhere in our

3 hazardous waste regulations.

4            The gist of the amendments to this rule is

5 just focusing on removing unnecessary restrictive words

6 and then removing the definitions that are only used for

7 the rules that we are proposing to rescind.

8            Chapter 4, 10 CSR 25-4.261, Identification of

9 Hazardous Waste.

10            And as I kind of mentioned at the beginning,

11 what this rule does is it's kind of the gateway to our

12 hazardous waste regulatory system.  This is the rule

13 that you go to to determine if a certain product or

14 material that you have generated is indeed a hazardous

15 waste.

16            It's kind of a two-prong test.  First

17 determine if it's hazardous or if it's a waste, and if

18 it is a waste, then you determine if it's also

19 hazardous.  If it meets both of those, then it's a

20 hazardous waste.

21            The specific Federal rule that we are

22 proposing to adopt is known as the Federal Definition of

23 Solid Waste Rule.  It's focused on this term hazardous

24 secondary materials.  Basically these are materials that

25 are not yet considered waste because they're destined to
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1 be recycled.

2            So the rule establishes a conditional

3 exclusion where if you are recycling this material and

4 you meet the conditions contained in the rule, then you

5 don't have to manage that material as hazardous waste.

6 You just have to manage it under the conditions in the

7 exclusion.  If you do that and you do meet those

8 conditions, it does allow for recycling of this material

9 without what is currently required, which is getting a

10 resource recovery certificate from the Department, and

11 it would also not require a hazardous waste permit.

12            If we do adopt the amendment as proposed,

13 Missouri rules will be equivalent to Federal Rules if

14 adopted.  It's relatively new because of the -- there

15 was a court decision on the earlier rules and EPA's

16 language to implement.  That court decision just came

17 out in May of this year, so I think we'll be one of the

18 few states that have gotten to adopt this version of the

19 rule.

20            We haven't previously adopted the 2008 or the

21 2015, have not adopted any of the Federal rules on this

22 subject at this point.  So if adopted as proposed we

23 will be equivalent to the Federal Rules.

24            We do have a fiscal note for this rule and

25 this relates to resource recovery, a rescission of the
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1 resource recovery rule.  Facilities that operate under

2 the exclusion and not under resource recovery would no

3 longer have to count their recycled materials as

4 hazardous waste, which would impact the fees that are

5 submitted to the Department for hazardous waste.  So we

6 try to account for that impact to our fees in the fiscal

7 notes.

8            There are two types of fiscal notes, public

9 entity and private entity.  This one is a public entity

10 fiscal note because it talks about basically the income

11 coming into the public entity, which in this case is the

12 Department of Natural Resources.

13            So that information is covered in the fiscal

14 note.  It came to I think around $82,000 for this rule,

15 and I'll talk about the fiscal note for the

16 corresponding rule when we get to the rescission of the

17 resource recovery rule.

18            The next rule, hazardous waste generators on

19 page 1765 in your packet.

20            Again, kind of the comment theme in this

21 rule, as with other rules, just getting rid of

22 unnecessary restrictive words and unneeded.

23            In this rule specifically what we are

24 proposing to do is get rid of some unneeded or unused

25 State specific requirements, and the idea is to simplify
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1 our generator regulations by getting rid of Missouri

2 options that are confusing and not widely used or

3 understood.  And we're talking about container and tank

4 labeling and satellite accumulation specifically.

5            On both of these topics there's a Federal

6 rule and there's a Missouri rule and generators can

7 choose which to comply with, depending on if the

8 Missouri rule or the Federal rule is better suited to

9 their needs at their specific facility.

10            We've had this kind of option system in place

11 since the no stricter than rulemaking five or six years

12 ago, but have found most facilities are not even aware

13 of the Missouri option and are just following the

14 Federal option.

15            The option does benefit some facilities, so

16 the additional flexibility does provide benefits to

17 certain facilities, that the Missouri option works

18 better for them, but overwhelming we've heard from our

19 regional offices and the inspectors that go out to the

20 facilities that facilities are not aware of the options,

21 they're kind of confused by the options, and even if

22 they are aware they're not fully aware of what the

23 Missouri option entails.

24            So the proposal would basically make

25 Missouri's rule equivalent to Federal Rules.  Everybody
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1 plays by the same playing book essentially.  Missouri

2 rules would be the Federal Rules for both container and

3 tank labeling and for satellite accumulation.

4            Specifically on container labeling, this is

5 just what kind of information generators have to put on

6 the containers that they have in storage.  And this

7 specific amendment is getting rid of the Missouri option

8 for labeling these containers, will be equivalent to the

9 Federal regulations for labeling these containers in

10 storage.

11            Again, we're just not seeing many generators

12 choosing to follow the Missouri options, so it's

13 creating confusion and there is additional rule language

14 to be familiar with and not many people are going that

15 route or choosing that option.

16            Similarly, satellite accumulation.  This

17 topic in general talks about storing hazardous waste at

18 or near the point of generation in between the time that

19 you generate the waste and the time that you move it to

20 your storage area to be disposed of or transported off

21 site.

22            It's kind of a convenience for the generator

23 to have that area located nearby the workplace so that

24 you have easy access to put material in during the

25 workday.
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1            With the two options, eliminating the

2 Missouri option on this rule also will align Missouri

3 with the Federal Rules for consistency and transparency.

4            Again, the Missouri option we have found

5 almost uniformly from our inspectors is not widely used

6 and not very well understood.  I think we have the

7 option on Missouri generator registration form to choose

8 the Missouri option, and out of 2,000 generators we had

9 I think around 300 that had chosen the Missouri option.

10 So those generators would be affected, but we feel like

11 they can operate under the Federal rule just fine

12 without using the Missouri option.

13            So we haven't heard -- we do have some

14 affected.  Some will prefer the Missouri option, but

15 overall I think we're hearing that it's the best way to

16 go with this is just to go with the Federal, so that's

17 what we proposed.

18            Transporters of Hazardous Waste, Chapter 6,

19 again, just the common theme.  We're just proposing to

20 get rid of some unnecessary restrictive words and doing

21 some reorganization in this particular rule of rule text

22 to try to reduce the number of restrictive words.

23            We have a list of things.  Instead of

24 repeating the same restrictive word over and over again,

25 just using it once and then listing the requirements,
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1 those type of changes, to try to make it more clear.

2            Next I kind of lumped these two rules

3 together, Chapters 7.264 and 265.  These are the rules

4 that deal with our permitted hazardous waste facilities.

5            These are another rules where a lot of the

6 excess Missouri language was already removed as part of

7 the no stricter than process, so we don't have a lot --

8 we didn't have a lot to work with in terms of Missouri

9 language, but we do have some references in these rules

10 to resource recovery.  So we are proposing to remove

11 those references.

12            And we do have some Missouri language in both

13 of these rules that relates to railcars.  These are

14 facilities that take hazardous waste in by railcars and

15 how they manage those railcars when they're on site.

16            Specifically we're proposing to remove that

17 option for interim status facilities because we do not

18 have any interim status facilities that are using that

19 option.  So that was just excess rule language not

20 needed and not used, so we're proposing to remove it

21 from the Missouri regulations.

22            266, removal of unnecessary restrictive words

23 and again unneeded or unused State-specific

24 requirements.  Not as much in that one.

25            The same with 10 CSR 25-7.270.
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1            Public Participation, Chapter 8.  This one is

2 a little bit different in that we actually have a

3 Missouri rule.  We do not incorporate the Federal rule

4 by reference.  We just have our own Missouri rule that

5 implements the same language or similar language that is

6 in the Federal rule, and we add some Missouri specific

7 language to our State rule.

8            This rule just has some outdated language on

9 how we maintain mailing lists, how the appeal process

10 works that we no longer need and also has some

11 references to the resource recovery certification

12 process that we are proposing to rescind.

13            The next rule is our actual rule that

14 currently deals with resource recovery facilities.  This

15 is the rule that we use to certify facilities that wish

16 to recycle their hazardous waste without getting a

17 full-blown hazardous waste permit.

18            Basically they come to the Department.  They

19 submit an application.  It's a two-year certificate.

20 Once the certificate is approved they can operate for

21 two years.  The material is still considered hazardous

22 waste, so they pay fees on the hazardous waste.  They

23 pay an application fee that comes in with the resource

24 recovery certification application, and they also pay,

25 according to the statute and the rule, the Department's
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1 oversight cost for reviewing that resource recovery

2 certification application.

3            So the fiscal note for this rule talks about

4 the loss of revenue to the Department of oversight costs

5 for issuing resource recovery certificates.

6            Transitioning to the Federal rule there will

7 be no certificate to issue.  The material would not be

8 considered hazardous waste, so we would not bill for

9 this material.  We would not receive oversight costs for

10 reviewing anything associated with this material.  It

11 will save generators money.  They will save the money on

12 the oversight costs and tonnage fees.

13            Again, the fiscal note is the public entity

14 fiscal note, so it shows the loss in revenue to the

15 Department if we rescind this rule and adopt the Federal

16 rule.

17            The next rule, Chapter 10.  This is the

18 registry of abandoned or uncontrolled hazardous waste

19 disposal sites.

20            I think the Commission is -- you have some

21 familiarity with this because we do the annual report

22 every year that talks about the sites that are on the

23 registry and any changes throughout the year.  There

24 really is very little in the rule that is not already in

25 the statute.  So that was one of our priorities was
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1 finding rules that duplicate statutory language.  We

2 don't need the statute in the rule.

3            I think a lot of these rules when they were

4 promulgated 30 years ago, it was harder to access copies

5 of the statute, so kind of having the information also

6 in the rule made it easier for people to find the

7 related information even if it was straight out of the

8 statute.

9            But these days where everything is available

10 electronically, everything is available on the internet,

11 so we really don't have to publish this information in

12 the rules to make it accessible to folks.

13            So basically that's what we're proposing to

14 do is rescind the rule, operate the program under

15 statutory authority.

16            The next chapter is Used Oil.  Again, there

17 are -- a lot of the Missouri requirements in this rule

18 went away with no stricter than, but we do have some

19 requirements that do remain.

20            Specifically we have some waste codes in this

21 rule that deal with PCB, or polychlorinated biphenyl

22 waste.  There is like twelve Missouri only waste codes

23 that we use for this material that are not at all used

24 and no longer needed, so we're proposing to eliminate

25 those waste codes in Missouri.
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1            Also this is kind of a remnant of a past

2 rulemaking where we had a requirement in the rule to use

3 a Missouri specific used oil shipment record for

4 facilities that are shipping the used oil.

5            There is a requirement in the Federal rule to

6 use a Federal form.  Missouri's rule also requires you

7 to use the Missouri form.  So we get transporters that

8 have to actually fill out two forms even though they

9 provide much the same information.

10            So with removing this Missouri requirement

11 we'll eliminate duplication.  These transporters can

12 just submit the Federal form and not have to duplicate

13 that effort with the Missouri form.

14            So consistent with the theme of red tape to

15 reduce requirements and duplication we proposed that

16 change in the used oil regulation.

17            Fees and Taxes is Chapter 12.  We do have

18 some outdated language in this rule that relates to our

19 old hazardous waste fee structure.  We went through a

20 process a few years ago, the Commission might remember,

21 to update our fees, the amount of the registration fee

22 and the amount of the in-state and out-of-state tonnage

23 fee.

24            So the rule still has some references to the

25 amounts that were in place prior to that -- prior to
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1 that change.  So we're getting rid of that outdated

2 language and removing unnecessary restrictive words.

3            Chapter 13, PCBs, Polychlorinated Biphenyls,

4 I mentioned in the waste codes.  So I think that's the

5 main highlight from this rule is no more Missouri

6 specific waste codes for this type of waste.

7            And I think I'll do the last hazardous waste

8 rule before the others call out because we're doing

9 these rules chronologically.  So the voluntary cleanup

10 rule and the tanks rule are kind of at the end of the

11 process numerically.

12            So I'll finish our last hazardous waste rule,

13 which is actually Universal Waste, 10 CSR 25-16.273.

14 It's a Missouri rule.  It incorporates a Federal rule by

15 reference.

16            We do have some Missouri specific language in

17 this rule that we are proposing to remove related to

18 pesticide collection programs.  This is one of the areas

19 where we do have some Missouri requirements remaining

20 that deal with how you handle pesticides that have been

21 collected through these pesticide collection programs,

22 but we are removing some of that excess language in the

23 Missouri rule and making that change consistent with the

24 red tape process.

25            So I'll go back here to the voluntary cleanup
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1 program, and Scott will come up and give you the

2 information about that rule.

3            (Speaker sworn.)

4            MR. HUCKSTEP:  Good morning, Commissioners.

5 I'm Scott Huckstep, Chief of the Brownfields/Voluntary

6 Cleanup Section, and quickly talk over the rules that

7 we're changing here that apply to the voluntary cleanup

8 program.

9            The majority of them would amend to eliminate

10 portions of the rule that basically restates information

11 that is already in the statute, and then one other part

12 to amend is to eliminate language which contradicts the

13 statute.

14            And it's in this one, near the end where it

15 says sites for remediation have been initiated or

16 completed since August 20th, 1994.

17            After discussion an issue was brought up

18 where it contradicts in the statutes which says that the

19 VCP or the Department shall approve applications unless

20 the contamination present are suspected to be present

21 warrants action under the CERCLA or the RCRA laws there.

22            And that's the only changes we're having

23 under the Voluntary Cleanup Program.

24            VICE CHAIRMAN FORESMAN:  Okay.  Thank you.

25            MR. EIKEN:  The next rule relates to
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1 underground storage tanks.  I think Justin Buckler with

2 our Underground Storage Tank Section will be presenting

3 the testimony on that rule.

4            MR. BUCKLER:  Good morning, Commissioners.

5 My name is Justin Buckler, and I'm an Environmental

6 Scientist with Hazardous Waste Program's Tank Section,

7 and I'm here to talk about a rule amendment that the

8 tank section has proposed as far as the Red Tape

9 Reduction Initiative.

10            It's been noted earlier the proposed

11 amendment to 10 CSR 26-2.080 is published in the

12 August 1st edition of the Missouri Register.  Comments

13 on the proposed rule amendment are currently open and

14 closed on September 20th.

15            The proposed changes to this rule were made

16 to remove language regarding risk-based target levels,

17 site ranking and activity and use limitations that is

18 either obsolete or has been incorporated elsewhere in

19 our regulations.

20            Additions to the rule have been made to

21 outline conditions under which a release from an

22 underground storage tank may achieve the no further

23 action status.  We retained important language in the

24 rule that specifies that the Department is the entity

25 that determines when no further action is required and
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1 language that allows the Department to require

2 additional investigation if subsequent information

3 becomes available to indicate that contamination may be

4 present at site levels that threaten human health or the

5 environment.

6            Thank you.

7            VICE CHAIRMAN FORESMAN:  Just a second.

8            Questions?

9            COMMISSIONER JORDAN:  Can we ask questions?

10            VICE CHAIRMAN FORESMAN:  Yes.

11            COMMISSIONER JORDAN:  You said that it

12 retained language of the Department's.  Can you repeat

13 that sentence?

14            MR. BUCKLER:  Important language in the rule

15 that specifies the Department is the entity that

16 determines when no further action is required and

17 language that allows the Department to require

18 additional investigation of subsequent information that

19 becomes available to indicate that contamination may be

20 present at site levels which may threaten human health

21 or the environment.

22            COMMISSIONER JORDAN:  I've read that a number

23 of times.  I think that rule has additions to it that

24 really don't have anything to do with red tape

25 reduction.
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1            That rule is obsolete.  There is no question.

2 I think it's obsolete in its entirety, but it appears to

3 be adding requirements that are not currently -- either

4 they're currently in the RBCA rules that were

5 incorporated -- or RBCA guidances incorporated in the

6 rules or they're not.  And if they're not, don't they

7 then become new requirements?

8            MR. BUCKLER:  We've received those comments,

9 and our plan is to address those comments once we get

10 comments from all other entities during the public

11 comment hearing, and we'll provide a recommendation once

12 we get all those comments and comments are closed.

13            COMMISSIONER JORDAN:  Okay.

14            VICE CHAIRMAN FORESMAN:  I have a question

15 too in that regard.

16            New to me is ecological receptors.  Is there

17 a definition in the regulations -- in our existing

18 regulations of ecological receptors?

19            MR. BUCKLER:  I'm not -- I'm not sure.  I

20 don't --

21            VICE CHAIRMAN FORESMAN:  Okay.  Because

22 that's new, and if we don't have a definition of it,

23 then that is kind of an open-ended statement there that

24 would require, I guess, before that is put in to having

25 some kind of definition so we know what we're dealing
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1 with.

2            Okay.  Keep that in mind.

3            MR. BUCKLER:  Okay.  Thank you.

4            VICE CHAIRMAN FORESMAN:  Okay.  Any further

5 questions?

6            COMMISSIONER JORDAN:  Can we still ask

7 questions of Tim?

8            VICE CHAIRMAN FORESMAN:  Yes.

9            MR. BUCKLER:  Thank you.

10            VICE CHAIRMAN FORESMAN:  Tim.

11            COMMISSIONER JORDAN:  You mentioned in the

12 discussion container labeling and satellite

13 accumulation.  Those were both elimination of Missouri

14 options in lieu of and substituting with the Federal.

15            MR. EIKEN:  Right.

16            COMMISSIONER JORDAN:  And you mentioned -- I

17 can't remember which one.  There were 300 out of 2,000

18 that were electing the option.

19            So does this reduce the burden for them or

20 increase the burden for them?

21            MR. EIKEN:  It will be kind of a case-

22 specific determination.  For some facilities maybe

23 not -- I don't think that it will increase the burden.

24 It will just kind of change the requirements that they

25 have to operate under and may change the frequency with
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1 which they have to move containers of hazardous waste

2 from a satellite accumulation area to their central

3 accumulation area.  They always have the option of

4 setting up additional satellite accumulation areas.

5            I mean, the issue with going with the Federal

6 language over the Missouri language comes down to

7 quantity basically.

8            Missouri allows a higher quantity of waste in

9 their satellite accumulation areas but with the one-

10 year time limit.  So we're doing away with the one-year

11 time limit in the higher quantities.

12            We allow 55 gallons per waste stream.  The

13 Federal rule only allows 55 gallons total.  So if you

14 have multiple waste streams, you'll hit that 55-gallon

15 total accumulation in the Federal regulations sooner

16 without the Missouri options.

17            So if they don't want additional burden and

18 additional costs, they will have to figure out a way to

19 I guess manage their satellite accumulation areas,

20 whether that's establishing additional satellite

21 accumulation areas to allow them to do that.

22            There is no limit on the number of satellite

23 accumulation areas but there are some practical

24 limitations in the rule in terms of where the satellite

25 accumulation areas are located.  They have to be at or
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1 near the point of generation and they have to be -- it's

2 kind of an eyesight test.  Basically the person

3 generating the hazardous waste has to have a satellite

4 accumulation area within line of sight or in their

5 immediate work area just so they can notice any leaking

6 containers or open containers or other irregularities

7 with containers.

8            So it's possible that there could be some

9 burden to generators that have multiple waste streams

10 that lose the ability to take advantage of the higher

11 accumulation limits in the Missouri rule, but we feel

12 like they can operate under the Federal rule with just

13 making some modifications to the number of satellite

14 accumulation areas in their facility.  And we'll work

15 with them as much as we can do to try to limit the

16 extent to which they are -- they do have additional

17 burdens.

18            And with getting rid of the Missouri option,

19 another burden that would be eliminated would be

20 notifying.  We have a place on the Missouri generator

21 registration form where if they choose the Missouri

22 option, they have to submit a certain generator

23 registration form with that box checked.

24            So it's some additional work for the facility

25 and for the State to kind of keep track of those
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1 notifications.  So they would no longer have to do that.

2 We would just know that everybody is under the Federal

3 rules.  So some additional burden but -- possibly,

4 depending on the facility, but also some additional

5 requirements would be going away.

6            COMMISSIONER JORDAN:  Have there been

7 comments from the affected opters of the Missouri

8 option?

9            MR. EIKEN:  We've kind of informally.  We

10 haven't received formal comments.  I think that we do

11 expect some comments to be coming on this particular

12 issue.  So we'll be reviewing those comments and kind of

13 making a final decision when we come back to the

14 Commission in a couple months with our Order of

15 Rulemaking.

16            But, yes, we have had kind of informal off-

17 the-record discussions with the affected stakeholders to

18 try to figure out the best path forward.  So we're kind

19 of still in that process where we're looking at the best

20 final decision on this proposal.  So I think that you

21 will see comments and you'll see some discussion of

22 those comments when we come back for your decision at

23 the next meeting.

24            COMMISSIONER JORDAN:  Okay.  Thank you.

25            MR. EIKEN:  Thank you.
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1            VICE-CHAIRMAN FOREMAN:  Go ahead.

2            MR. EIKEN:  That's it for the Department.

3            MR. JURGENSMEYER:  I think you had an

4 additional slide.

5            There you go.

6            MR. EIKEN:  Yes.

7            Just to kind of finish off the Department's

8 testimony, just a brief rulemaking schedule.

9            We mentioned the publication dates, 18 rules

10 published July 16th, one rule published August 1st.

11 Today, September 13th, is the public hearing.

12 September 20th is the end of the public comment period.

13 Once we hit that September 20th date we start the clock

14 ticking to make our final decision on these rules.

15            Essentially we have -- you'll see there --

16 until December 20th to file that final decision with the

17 Secretary of State, and actually 30 days prior to that

18 we have to file our final decision with the Legislative

19 Joint Committee on Administrative Rules.

20            So we're looking at more mid November to

21 where we have to have our recommended final decision to

22 the legislative committee.

23            And based on that schedule, if we meet that

24 December 20th deadline, the publication date for the

25 Orders of Rulemaking would be February 1st of next year,
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1 and the effective date of these rules will be March 30th

2 of next year.

3            So that concludes our Department's testimony.

4 Thank you.

5            VICE CHAIRMAN FORESMAN:  Thank you, Tim.

6            We'll now open the hearing to public

7 comments.

8            Has anybody signed up on the sheet in the

9 back and wish to make comments?

10            MS. DOBSON:  Kevin Perry.

11            (Speaker sworn.)

12            MR. PERRY:  Good morning, Vice-Chairman

13 Foresman, and good morning, Commissioners.

14            VICE-CHAIRMAN/COMMISSIONERS:  Good morning.

15            MR. PERRY:  My name is Kevin Perry.  I'm the

16 Assistant Director at REGFORM, the Regulatory

17 Environmental Group for Missouri.

18            REGFORM is a statewide business association

19 of regulated entities representing manufacturing and

20 mining and electric utilities and chemical and other

21 business interests, as well as higher education

22 institutions.  We represent them on environmental

23 matters in Missouri, and our membership is diverse and

24 touches on almost all areas of the economy in Missouri,

25 and further, our members must comply with the rules that
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1 are before you today.  So thank you so much for this

2 opportunity to comment on these rules.

3            I'm going to focus my comments on

4 10 CSR 5-25.262, but before I do that I do want to say

5 this red tape reduction process is no insignificant

6 undertaking despite what Tim has said about a lot of the

7 rule changes having already taking place under the no

8 stricter than process.  It was still and nonetheless a

9 gigantic effort to review and look at all these rules

10 and make sense of them, identify these changes, identify

11 these restrictions and then compile the changes and come

12 back and make these proposals all under pretty

13 significant deadlines.

14            So we really want to commend the Department

15 on this effort.  This is no small undertaking.

16            Also we won't be writing comment letters on

17 the other parts of these rules, but we do want to

18 acknowledge some of these changes that the Department

19 has proposed.  They're very significant and very

20 positive for Missourians who have to comply with these

21 regulations.

22            The resource recovery program change, the

23 changes that eliminate certain labeling and marking

24 requirements are all very significant.  We've been

25 asking for these changes for a while and they're here,
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1 and the Department is to be acknowledged and commended

2 for proposing them.

3            Commissioner Jordan, I think your inclination

4 is correct in your line of questioning.  We support the

5 goals that are set forth in the Executive Order 17-03

6 and the actions that the Department has taken to remove

7 unnecessary restrictions on regulated Missourians.

8            But there are two amendments in this proposed

9 rule that are inconsistent with the executive order.

10 These two proposed amendments are also not consistent

11 with the purpose section that is published at the

12 beginning of the proposed rule, which says that the

13 proposed rule changes are for the purpose of reducing

14 regulations that unnecessarily burden individuals and

15 businesses, while doing little to protect or improve

16 public health and safety and our natural resources.

17            So we've identified two rules in 25.262 that

18 we think do the opposite.  They add restrictions by

19 eliminating options that Missourians have had.  And they

20 haven't just had them for a little while.  They've had

21 them for a long time.  So all of a sudden they've become

22 unattractive or not useful to Missourians.  So we think

23 it's sort of the improper time to, quote, unquote, take

24 away these options or eliminate these options.

25            The Department has proposed to eliminate what
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1 has been called the Missouri approach or the Missouri

2 option to satellite accumulation areas.  This approach

3 to managing satellite accumulation areas has been in

4 place in Missouri and has been used by Missouri

5 generators for decades.

6            Currently a generator in Missouri has the

7 option of operating any satellite accumulation area

8 under either the Federal approach, which has been said

9 earlier which limits waste streams to a combined maximum

10 of 55 gallons.  So all of the waste streams in one

11 satellite area cannot exceed 55 gallons.

12            The other option that they have is the

13 Missouri approach, which allows each individual waste

14 stream to accumulate up to 55 gallons as long as an

15 accumulation start date is marked on the container.

16 There are other requirements as well but I just want to

17 make that distinction.

18            Having these two options is valuable and it

19 helps Missouri generators.  Unlike what Tim said, this

20 is valuable to people who need to comply with these

21 regulations.  The proposed rules, if you adopt it as

22 proposed, would take away the Missouri option, which is

23 the approach that limits waste accumulation by time, not

24 by volume.

25            We've met with program staff and we've
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1 provided examples of our member facilities that simply

2 cannot comply with the Federal approach, and so since

3 they cannot comply with the Federal approach, what

4 they've been forced to do is convert some of their

5 satellite accumulation areas over to 90-day storage

6 areas.  The 90-day storage areas come with all sorts of

7 additional requirements, like weekly inspections and

8 things like that.

9            I guess one thing I want to do is just ask,

10 well, what is the satellite accumulation area?  I was

11 listening to Tim and Tim said it's storage.  And it's

12 not storage.  It's accumulation.  It's where the work

13 gets done, and it's under the control of the operator.

14            And while a person is doing his work -- and

15 that person is not necessarily a trained environmental

16 compliance specialist.  That person is usually just a

17 worker.  He accumulates a certain amount of waste, and

18 then when that -- when that waste at his or her

19 workstation or work area in this satellite accumulation

20 area either reaches a time limit or a quantity limit,

21 then that waste gets taken off to a designated storage

22 area, which is typically controlled, monitored, managed

23 by, you know, a trained environmental person who has

24 had, you know, environment compliance training and

25 understands hazardous waste and hazardous waste
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1 regulations.

2            So it's an accumulation area.  It's not a

3 professionally managed storage area.  And these are all

4 over, generator sites in Missouri.  Some generator sites

5 have more than a thousand satellite accumulation areas

6 in their facilities.

7            So we'd like to just suggest to you that the

8 option to use the Missouri approach should not be

9 rescinded as is currently proposed.

10            We agree with the Department that not many

11 generators at this time have chosen to use the Missouri

12 option in their satellite accumulation areas, and

13 frankly we're not surprised that they haven't chosen.

14            And the reason that they haven't chosen is

15 because right now there is a restriction that exists in

16 the regulation that forces them to choose one and only

17 one approach to managing all of the satellite

18 accumulation areas in their entire facility.

19            So if I've got a certain work area over here

20 that operates in a particular way and one across the way

21 that operates in a different way, I can't mix the type

22 of satellite accumulation compliance that I use in that

23 facility.  I have to pick one and then I have to do that

24 and only that.

25            So under the existing restriction the
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1 generators must operate under the same approach at every

2 single satellite accumulation area within a generator

3 location.  It's unduly restrictive.

4            In other words, at any facility you can't

5 have two satellite accumulation areas that use a

6 different option.  Both must be either Federal or

7 Missouri.  You can never mix or combine options.  That

8 prohibition keeps generators from using the Missouri

9 option in Missouri.

10            So not only are we asking you not to rescind

11 this.  We're actually asking you as well to use your

12 authority to expand the rule and amend the rule so that

13 generators can use both the State and the Federal

14 approach to satellite accumulation areas in any

15 facility, allow them to use the best compliance option

16 at any satellite accumulation area in their facility

17 that works best with the type of work that is being done

18 there.

19            As has been discussed here, the comment

20 period remains open for another week, so I'll be

21 submitting detailed written comments for you and for

22 your review and consideration, but I'll include in that

23 discussion an idea that we've come up with for

24 maintaining a memo in the file so that an inspector can

25 come and read in that memo, a dated memo, which
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1 satellite accumulation areas are being managed under the

2 Missouri approach and which are being managed under the

3 Federal approach.

4            The second rule proposal is related to the

5 ability to label containers with a capacity of less than

6 one gallon on a rack, locker or shelf.  This is a very

7 practical consideration.  It is valuable to Missouri

8 generators.

9            As you know, you can get a group of almost

10 any size together -- take this group for example.  It

11 would be very difficult for us to come to a unanimous

12 agreement on many topics.

13            When we were having stakeholder meetings

14 several years ago on these regulations, this proposed

15 rule on the less than one gallon container labeling was

16 unanimously supported among the people who participated

17 in the stakeholder meeting.

18            So we're surprised and confused why under Red

19 Tape Reduction the Department is proposing to take this

20 away.  It's been in place.  It's been working.  So

21 what's the reason for taking it away?

22            It's not that it's not used.  It's not that

23 it's not well understood.  So we don't understand the

24 reason.

25            And one of the biggest or most numerous types
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1 of accumulation areas or storage areas in Missouri has

2 to do with laboratories.  When you have laboratories,

3 you have very small containers and you have tons of

4 them.  Imagine trying to affix a giant hazardous waste

5 label to every single one of them.

6            And we've come up with the solution that says

7 put those small containers on a rack, put them in a

8 locker, put them in a closet and then label the locker

9 or the closet or the rack and then you've met the

10 requirement.  Why try to force a giant label onto

11 something the size of a test tube?

12            So we think that rescinding this or proposing

13 to rescind this is inconsistent with the goals of Red

14 Tape Reduction to remove flexibility that exists right

15 now, and so we ask that you retain this provision by not

16 adopting the proposal that removes it.

17            That's the end of my testimony.  I'd be happy

18 to try to answer any questions you might have if you

19 have any.

20            VICE CHAIRMAN FORESMAN:  Any questions?

21            Kevin, thank you.  We appreciate it.

22            MR. PERRY:  Thank you very much.

23            (Speaker sworn.)

24            MR. SHANKS:  Good morning, Commissioners.

25            I'm not as tall.
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1            I'm David Shanks from the Boeing Company in

2 St. Louis.

3            Boeing supports the REGFORM comments that you

4 just heard, particularly the ones about satellite

5 accumulation areas where you have two compliance

6 options, and we support the idea of let's retain both

7 compliance options.

8            Really depending on the waste generated by a

9 particular manufacturing process, the Missouri time

10 limited approach may be preferable to the total volume

11 limited approach that is found in Federal -- actually

12 it's found in EPA guidance.  The rule itself is not that

13 explicit.

14            So in -- in recent -- this last year's

15 hazardous waste identification rule, or the generator

16 improvement rule, it's in a footnote, and it goes back

17 to an old, old EPA guidance document.  So it's not that

18 clear that the Federal -- the Federal rule is really

19 much of a rule.

20            But at Boeing St. Louis we have two very

21 different waste generating processes that I think

22 illustrate the advantage of each satellite area

23 compliance approach.

24            So we've got open shop areas.  These are --

25 these are workbenches, workstands where individual
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1 people are working on a piece of the airplane.  And

2 they're riveting or they're touching up paint.  They're

3 doing lots of stuff right at the workstation.

4            And we -- we've counted roughly a thousand,

5 give or take 100 or so, individual satellite

6 accumulation areas at these workbenches.

7            The containers are generally five gallons in

8 size.  They're red step cans.  And so the guy, he's done

9 with his wipe -- with his wipe or his gloves or dirty

10 gloves or brush or whatever.  The step can is right

11 there.  He steps on it, throws it in, the lid closes and

12 that's it.

13            So each step can is a satellite accumulation

14 area that is under the control of the person doing the

15 work at that location.

16            And it's only one waste stream.  Typically in

17 those open shop areas it's paint and sealant,

18 contaminated gloves, wipes, brushes, and that's what is

19 really generated.  And that's a single waste stream.

20 It's typically chromated primer is what causes it to be

21 hazardous waste.

22            So under the Federal volume limit approach

23 these five-gallon step cans automatically meet the

24 55-gallons total volume limit for a satellite area.  So

25 the Federal procedure works there pretty well.
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1            Yet under the pre-2015 Missouri rule we would

2 only have one compliance option.  That was the one-year

3 limit.  So these thousand or so step cans that are out

4 in the shop had to be emptied and relabeled at least

5 annually with a new start date to comply with the

6 Missouri rule.

7            So, you know, in that case you would prefer

8 not to have to relabel a thousand step cans.  The

9 Federal rule doesn't require the start date.

10            So by contrast we have six paint booth mix

11 rooms that generate multiple waste streams.  So in those

12 paint booths you're going to generate waste paint, what

13 is left in the cup after the guy gets done spraying the

14 airplane, spent solvent from the gun cleaning.  You're

15 going to get wipes and cardboard that is contaminated

16 with the primer, chromated primer, and in some cases

17 you're going to have small amounts of paint stripper, or

18 there is a pretreatment chemical that we use that is a

19 mild chromic acid solution that is still a different

20 waste stream.

21            So under the Missouri time limited approach

22 that has been proposed for rescission we could collect

23 up to 55 gallons of each of those waste streams.  In

24 other words we could actually fill a drum before moving

25 it off to 90-day storage so long as the container didn't
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1 remain in the mix room more than one year.

2            Now, it's a fact under any scenario, any

3 compliance option, once a 55-gallon drum is full it has

4 to be moved out within three days, so that doesn't

5 change either way.

6            So under the volume limited approach in the

7 Federal guidance the total waste accumulated in the

8 paint booth mix room cannot exceed 55 gallons total.

9 And when the paint booths are being actively used, they

10 generate a significant amount of waste in a pretty short

11 amount of time.

12            And so what that would require to follow in

13 the Federal guidance is that we constantly open and

14 estimate the total amount of waste in all of the

15 containers in that shop area on a pretty frequent basis,

16 and, you know, basically move partially full drums out

17 to the 90-day storage area once our total had hit

18 55 gallons.

19            So under the Federal approach really the only

20 alternative to this frequent drum checking and partial

21 drum movement and so forth is to declare each paint

22 booth mix room a 90-day storage area and meet all of the

23 additional requirements that attach to that.

24            So it's not an attractive option but one that

25 you would have to -- it's really the only way to operate
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1 a paint booth under the Federal approach.

2            But because the 2015 Missouri rule requires

3 the same compliance option within each generator site,

4 what we did, we converted all of the paint booth mix

5 rooms to 90-day storage areas even though they were

6 really functioning as satellite accumulation areas.

7            So the Federal volume limited approach that

8 worked so well for open shop areas presented real

9 operational and safety problems when you apply it to the

10 spray booth areas in the same building.

11            We believe that the volume limited and the

12 time limited option provide environmental safeguards.

13 Both options ensure that satellite accumulation areas

14 are used as they were intended for temporary

15 accumulation of limited quantities.

16            We believe that both compliance methods

17 should be available to Missouri generators, and they

18 should be applied to those waste generating locations

19 within a generator site where they make the most sense

20 operationally and for ease of inspection by DNR, and we

21 have internal compliance inspection auditors as well.

22 We have Boeing folks who visit us from other Boeing

23 sites, and they're checking us as well.

24            We do believe that the idea of having

25 something in the file, a dated document that says, okay,



 MEETING  9/13/2018

www.alaris.us Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334
ALARIS LITIGATION SERVICES

Page 44

1 you know, in our paint booth areas we follow this

2 option.  In our open shop areas we follow that option.

3 Laboratories are done this way.

4            You need something in the file to guide the

5 inspector or your internal auditor to what to look for

6 when they go out in the shop.  So we're perfectly fine

7 with some kind of a document that guides folks.

8            And that's all I have for today.  Do you have

9 any questions?

10            COMMISSIONER JORDAN:  I do.

11            VICE CHAIRMAN FORESMAN:  Yes.

12            COMMISSIONER JORDAN:  You operate in many

13 states?

14            MR. SHANKS:  Right.

15            COMMISSIONER JORDAN:  Do other states have

16 State-specific options that provide that kind of

17 flexibility from the Federal options?

18            MR. SHANKS:  We saw it in Georgia.  This is

19 many, many years ago.  I'm not sure what the present

20 Georgia rule allows.

21            But we had a plant in Macon, Georgia, and

22 they had a very similar -- it was basically a Missouri

23 approach.

24            You know -- you know, Washington state where

25 we, you know, have a lot of operations, I think it's
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1 pretty much strictly Federal there.  And, you know, when

2 you're under a Federal system, you're probably -- if you

3 have a paint booth with multiple waste streams and a

4 very high generation rate, you're just going to have to

5 go with 90-day storage.  You're not going to able to --

6 even though it is an accumulation area, you can't treat

7 it that way.

8            COMMISSIONER JORDAN:  I'm sure you've done

9 internal estimates of what this would cost you.

10            MR. SHANKS:  Well, we -- you know, some of

11 the cost is, okay, well, now that paint booth becomes a

12 part of the weekly inspection log, you know, along with

13 all of the other 90-day storage areas.  So that is one

14 of them.

15            Certainly the idea of a total -- of trying to

16 manage it as an accumulation area, you know, and having

17 multiple drums and checking them all of the time and,

18 you know, opening them up and trying to look in there,

19 it's just -- it's not safe.  I mean, it's not so much

20 cost.  It's just -- it's just not a safe thing to be

21 doing.  We wouldn't go that way.

22            VICE CHAIRMAN FORESMAN:  Any other questions?

23            Thanks, Dave.

24            MR. SHANKS:  Thanks.

25            VICE CHAIRMAN FORESMAN:  Anybody else that
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1 would like to make comment at this point in time?

2            If not, then I will close the public hearing

3 and we will move on to the next item on the agenda.

4            WHEREIN, the public hearing concluded.

5

6
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1

2

3                 CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

4

5            I, Patricia A. Stewart, CCR, a Certified

6 Court Reporter in the State of Missouri, do hereby

7 certify that the testimony taken in the foregoing

8 transcript was taken by me to the best of my ability and

9 thereafter reduced to typewriting under my direction;

10 that I am neither counsel for, related to, nor employed

11 by any of the parties to the action in which this

12 transcript was taken, and further that I am not a

13 relative or employee of any attorney or counsel employed

14 by the parties thereto, nor financially or otherwise

15 interested in the outcome of the action.

16

17

18                         __________________________

19                         Patricia A. Stewart

20                         CCR 401

21

22

23

24

25
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